RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS

()AOm COUNTY BOARD OF COMMmiO.ZS
Monday, April 22,1996

9:00 a.m. - 930 a.m.

Executive Session - Personnel, Litigationand Land Acquisition.
Flag Salute.

9:30 a.m. - 1O:OO a.m.

Presentation by Skagitonians to Preserve Farmland on Conservation Futures.

1000 a.m. - 11:OO a.m.

Public Works Department Jan Keiser. Director.
Signature Memorandum of Understanding with Washington State Department
I)
of Fish and Wildlife, Skagit Systems Cooperative, US. Depaltment of Agriculture
Mount Baker EnoqualmieNational Forest Senrice.
Signature - InterlocalAgreement with Washington State Department of Fkh and
2)
Wildlife and Skagit Systems Cooperative.
Signature Resolution Establishing County Road Project #9795-3, Cascade River
3)
Road.
Signature Right-of-way Plans Francis Road Curve Improvement, County Road
4)
Project #7900-3.
Signature Resolution Regarding Adjustment of Mitigation Fees Fast Break,
5)
Incorporated.
6)
Miscellaneous.

-

-

-

-

-

-

11:00a.m.-11:30a.m.

Signature PersonnelPolicyAmendments.

11:30a.m.-11:45a.m.

Proclamation NationalGrange Week (April 21 27,1996).

-

-

CONSENT AGENDA.
MISCELLANEOUS.
The Skagit County Board of Commissioners mat in regular session on Monday, April 22,1996, with Cornmissioners Ted W.
Anderson, Harvey Wolden and Robert Hart present.
PRESENTATION BY SKAGITONlANS TO PRESERM FARMLAND ON CONSERVATION FUTURES,
Bob Rose, Executive Director of Skagitonians to Preserve Farmland, read the mission statement of the organization to the
Board, mentioning that they intendto continue to researchmethods to meet the goal of retainingthe agriculturaleconomy in
Skagit County.
Mr. Rose, on behalf of Skagitonians to Preserve Farmland. proposed that the County partidpate financially by contributing
$3,000 towards a Consewation Futuresstudy and gathering &ens concernson agriculturalissues, while reviewing the
history of the conservation Mures law that was passed in 1971.

his law, noting that Skagit County
Mr. Rose pointed out that eleven Counties within the State of Washington have enacted t
is the only County in the Puget Sound region that has not partidpated. Mr. Rose remindedthe Board that even though
Skagit County is later than other Counties, it is still possible to reap the benefitsof the Conservation Futures funds and
explained the innovative method of funding and the matching funds that are available.
Mr. Rose reported that thii calculatesat approximately $6per thousand in tax for property owners, describing the visible
results that could occur from an investment such as thii.
Mr. Rose discussed the fact that research has uncovered t
histype of funding mechanism and that it appears to be a fair and
effective approach to addressing property interests of farmers and agricultural propertyowners. Mr. Rose mentioned that
Cedar River Associates. who is represented by John Howell. has offered their technical assistance in thii regard in order to
minimize the impact. from a staffing perspective. to produce the study.
A discussion was held in regard to the authority aspect of thii enactment and the flexibility of making purchases for
conservation of lands for open space.

LVol

83 PACE233

Mike Woodmansee, BudgeWinanceDirector, stated that local commercial retail business had paid an amount to the
County ag miligation fund and stated that those funds would be available because the land used for those businesses was
converted from ag land. Mr. Woodmansee reportedthat due to lack of a plan being in place for utilization of those funds
previously, there was nothing budgeted from t
his fund, however, Mr. Woodmansee reminded the Board that the budget
could be amended.
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Chairman Anderson stated that in his opinion, the tax of $6 per thousand per year was feasible and urged Skagitonians to
Preserve Farmlandsto begin educating the public by going to senrice clubs. Mr. Rose stated that the Skagitonians to
Preserve Farmland would proceed with the public education aspect.
Commissioner Hart made a motion to appropriate$3,000 for the study as proposed by Skagitonians to Preserve Farmland.
Commissioner Wolden seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
The Board commended all who were in attendance at the presentation today.

-

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT Jan Keiser. Director.
1.

Discussion - Memorandum of Understandina with Washinaton State DeDarbnent of Fish and Wildlife. S k a
%ems Coooerative. U.S. DeDartment of Aariculture -Mount Baker ISnoaualmie National Forest SeM'ce.
Dave Brookings, provided the Memorandum of Understanding as referenced above, stating that this would provide
for the design and constructionof three cooperative fish passagelprotection projects located at Lake Cavanaugh
Road, Coal Creek and Sibley Creek. Mr. Brookings provided informationto the Board in regard to the budget
commitments and limitations of the various agencies involved in each of these projects.
A discussion ensued in regard to the commitment of the County on these projects. Mr. Brookings stated he would
bring this Memorandum of Understanding back to the Board for signature next week and the Board concurred.

2.

Sianature - InterlocalAareement with Washinaton State Department of Fsh and Wildlife and Skaait Svstems
CooDerative.
Mr. Brookings presented the InterlocalAgreement as noted above. Mr. Brookings stated that thii agreement is
necessatyto proceed with the construction of a fish passage project on Coal Creek where it intersectswith Hoehn
Road. This agreement slipulates a three-way cost-share of $60,000 for the constructionof thii project.
Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the Resolution and InterlocalAgreement, as presented.
Commissioner Wolden seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. !Resolution #16120 and (Contract
#02932).

3.

Siinature - Resolution Establishina Countv Road Proiect #9795-3. Cascade River Road.
Ed Hawes presented a Resolution to establish a County Road Project in the amount of $50,000 for the Cascade
River Road for Engineering.
Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the Resolution establishing Cascade Rhrer Road as a county road
project. Commissioner Wolden seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. !Resolution #161211,

4.

Sianature - Riaht-Of-Wav Plans - Francis Road Curve Imaovement. Countv Road Proiect #7900-3.
Mr. Hewes presented Right-of-way Plans for the Francis Road Curve Improvement project. The Board signed the
Right-of-way plans as presented.

5.

Sianature - Resolution Reoardina Adiustment of Mitioation Fees - Fast Break. Incomorated.

Ms. Keiser presented a Resolution. reportingthat on advice from legal counsel and to comply with the Auditor's
requirements. thii Resolution is necessary to institute a refund of a portion of mitigationcosts paid to the County.
Commissioner Wolden made a motion to approve the Resolution as presented. Commissioner Hart seconded the
motion and it passed unanimously. [Resolution #16122 1,

VOI.
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)Jlillaneous.
I.

Mr. Brookings updated the Board on the recent meeting with the Army Corps of Engineersand other
groups in regard to the feasibility study. Mr. Brookingsstated that he will bring informationback to the
Board as it is available.

SIGNATURE -PERSONNEL POLICY AMENDMENTS.
Stephanie Wood, Personnel Director, discussedthe personnel p o l i amendments, as prepared by the Personnel Polides
Review Committee, to update the Personnel Policies and ProceduresManual in preparation for a reprint of the Manual. Ms.
Wood reviewed the changes in the Grievance Policy, the Alternative Work Arrangement Policy, Statement of Purpose,
Vacation Leave, and Education Reimbursement
The Board commented on the Alternative Work Arrangement Policy, stating that they would like to be reprised of these
arrangements as they were made. The Board also commented on the Education ReimbursementPolicy and Bob Taylor,
Administrative Officer, outlined the criteria of the policy. A lengthy discussion continued in regard to the implementationof
this policy and the authorativecontrol of Department Heads or Elected Officials in making determinationsin this regard.
Due to time constraints, Chairman Anderson suggested reschedulingthii discussion at a later date in order to continue to
review the remaining policies.
PROCLAMATION -NATIONAL GRANGE WEEK (APRIL 21 - 27.19961.
Commissioner Wolden read the Proclamation into the record, proclaimingApril 21 through 27.1996. as National Grange
Week and the Board signed the Proclamation as provided.
A discussion followed in regard to the various Granges located in Skagit Valley.
CONSENT AGENDA.
Commissioner Wolden made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda for Monday, April 22,1996, as presented
Commissioner Halt seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

.

CommissionersOffice:
1.

Record of the Proceedingsof Monday, April 15,1996.

2.

Record of the Proceedingsof Tuesday. April 16,1996.

3.

Resolution adjusting the monetary amount of change fund for cash transactions in the Skagit County
Sheriffs Offices reducing the Sheriffs Office Petty Cash Fund from $300 to $200 and that the number of
cash drawers be reduced from three to two. {Resolution #16123h

4.

Resolution Closing the Petty Cash for the Skagk County Sheriffs Office Detention Fund. {Resolution
# l 61241.

5.

ResoluijonAmending resolution#9340 regardingthe RecordsAccess Fee Schedule for the Skagit County
Sheriffs M c e , to include the attached schedule of fees for seMces provided by the Skagit County Jail
through the Skagit County Sheriffs Office. [Resolution #16125 1.

6.

Resolution approving sick leave transfer for Gail Logsdon to authorize the transfer of the offered but
untransferred leave. [Resolution #16126 I,

7.

Annual Advertising Contract with SkagitValley PublishingCo. for the purchase of space for posting
the Skagit County Commissioner's agenda on a weekly basis at the rate of $10.15 pd per inch per insertion.
LContract #02934).
r;"P
i VOI
FAlEuL'r)
Personal Services Agreement with Nai-che (L. Associates for the term of May I,1996 until terminated, to
provide services of training under the direction of the County Training Administrator on a variety of topics.
Compensationwill not exceed $15,000. IContract #02935&

0.
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a-

Resolution Extending Repayment of InterfundLoan to Emergency Communications Fund extending the
lnterfund Loan repayment to May 31,1996. IResolution #161271.

Assigned Counsel:
10.

1998 until
PersonalServices Agreement with Eileen E. Butler, Attorney, for the term of February I,
terminated to provide legal seMces in performing Juvenile Court cases that are considered to be conflict of
interest cases for the Public Defender‘s office. Compensation will be as outlined in Exhibit “B”.
[Contract #029361,

Data Processing:
11.

PersonalServices Agreement with Target Communications, Inc. dba Target Marketing Group for the period
of providing the development of marketingmaterials, adverlising design, media coordination, event
productionand consultationwith the intent of disseminating informationto the public for the Enhanced
91IiReaddressing project. compensationwill be as outlined in Exhibit “B’. Icontract #029371

Parks:
12.

ProfessionalSeMces Contractwith Skagit Soffball Umpires Assodation to provide umpires to all assigned
league games at the rate of $17.50 per game, plus travel, for the I996 league season. [Contract #029381,

Planning:
13.

Personal Services Agreement with Cordia Sammeth for April 20,1g98, to provide two hours of aquatic
insect educationalfield tour in coordination with the Watershed Masters Volunteer Training program from
noon 2:OO p.m. at Pomona Grange Park. Compensation will be at $100 for this service. /Contract
#029331,

-

.

MISCELIANE0US

1.

Vouchers audited and certified by the audibing officer as required by R.C.W. 42.24.080 and those expense
reimbursementclaims certified as requiredby R.C.W. 4224.090 have been recordedon a listing which has been
made available to the Board.

As of this date, April 22,1996, by a majority vote, did approve for payment those vouchers included in he above
mentioned list and further described as follows:
Vouchers PDRAWAP09888through PDRAWAPIOOMand Warrants #74077 through #74259. Transmittal#P-08-

m

Vouchers#600382IA, #6004060,#6007-143 through #6007-144, #6007-146 through #6007-153, #6010-155
through #6007- 161, #6010-188, #6010-220 through #6010-229. #6010-231 through #6010-240. #6010-242
through #8010-249. #6010-251 through #6010-254 in the amount of $1,042,547.84. Warrants #I51234 through
#152002. LTransmittal#C1946).
2.

Staff presented an Aquatic Weeds Management Fund Grant Agreement with the State of Washington Depalbnent
of Ecology to provide funds for the preparation of an Integrated Aquatic Plant Management Plan for Lake McMurray.
The W M P will target the non-native and invasive aquatic weed Eurasian water milfoil for eradicationand/or
management. The total project cost will be $37,250 with the reapient share at $9,312. The grant periodwill expire
no later than December 31,1996. Commissioner Wolden made a motion to approve the agreement, as presented.
Commissioner Hart seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. [Contract #029391,

3.

Staff presentedan Amendment to Skagit County‘s Community Development Block Grant contract with the
Departmentof Community, Trade and Economic Development, Contract No. 1-95-744-019 in regardto the West
Shore Utility Improvement Project. extending the time period to implementthe funding of eligible assessments for
both the wastewater and water system improvements. amending the total amount to $414266.68. Commissioner
Hart made a motion to approve the amendment, as presented. Commissioner Wolden seconded the motion and it
passed unanimously. Contract #02449 1.

I VOI
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a-

Staff presented an agreement with Northwest Regional Council to provide EpidemiologyServices. NWRC
will provide personnelto perform and support the duties of a Regional Epidemiologist, also providingsalary and all
personnelwsb associatedwith the program. This contract is for the period of January 1,1996 through June 30,
1997. CommissionerWolden made a motion to approve the contract, as presented. Commissioner Hart seconded
the motion and it passed unanimously. [Contract #02940).

ADJOURNMENT.
Chairman Anderson made a motion to adjourn the proceedings. Commissioner Hart seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously.

--

*'

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
SKAGIT COUNTY, WA

,

Robert Hart, Commissioner

ATTEST.
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Skagi County Boardof Commissioners

Tuesday, April 23,1996

8:30 a.m. - 9:OO a.m.

7:30 a.m. 8:30a.m.

Commissioners' Staff Meeting.

-

Work Session Operations Division Managermict MaintenanceSupervisors.
Flag Salute

-

-

9:OO a.m. 1O:OO a.m.

Planning 8 Permit Center Roxanne Michael, Director.
1)
Introduction New Permit Technician.
2)
Discussion Resource Lands Ordinance Update.
3)
Discussion - Call for Public Hearing on Interim Ordinance#I6075 and #l6093.
4)
Miscellaneous.

1:30 p.m. - 1:45 p.m.

Bid Opening - Bow Hill Road #2120-3.

-

-

2:OO p.m. 3:30 p.m.

Public Transpoltation BeneMArea Board Meeting (Commissionet's Hearing Room)

3:30 p.m. - 500 p.m.

Public Hearing Critical Areas Ordinance (Hearing Rooms B 8 C).

-

700 p.m. 1O:OO p.m.

-

-

Public Hearing (Continued) Critical Areas Ordinance (Hearing Rooms B 8 C).

The Skagit County Board of Commissionersmet in regular d o n on Tuesday, April 23,1996, with Commissioners Ted W.
Anderson, Harvey Wolden and Robert Hart present.

-

PLANNING B PERMI1 CENTER Roxanne Michael. Director,
1.

-

htroduction New Permit Technician,
Roxanne Michael, introduced Brandon Black, as the new Permit Technician.

2.

-

Discussion Resource Lands Ordinance Uodate.
Gary Christenson. Planning, presentedthe weekly update on the Natural Resource Lands. Mr. Christenson
reviewed the process as an attempt is made to comply with the Growth Management Act (GMA) and the Growth
Hearings Board order. Mr. Christenson presenteda map illustrating Skagit County Potential Natural Resource
Lands and stated that approximately 131,000 acres in the County are in potential Natural Resource Lands, which
amounts to approximately 10% of the County land, stating that the outlined areas be designated as Resource
Conservation.
Mr. Christensondescribed the methodologyinvolved in addressing this issue and continued to discuss the soil
testing procedure and current use taxation involvedin arriving at these land designations. Mr. Christensonalso
discussed the concept of protecting the Resource Lands and reviewed the implementation of actual procedures
of providing thii protection.
A discussion followed in regard to the Growth Management Act propelty rights requirements.

Mr. Christensonstated that the anticipatedordinance leaves quite a bit of flekibility to the landowners and that
Resource Land designationdoes not necessarily preclude landownersfrom building single family residences.
It was reportedthat various changes will occur after public participationand Planning Commission input before
the document will come before the Board.
Mr. Christensonstated that completion is near on the methodology, ordinance language and mapping and that he
anticipatesthe drafI documents will be released next week to the public.
3.

Discussion- Call for Public Hearina on Interim Ordinance #I6075 and #16093.
Tom Karsh, Planning, stat6d that based on advice from legal counsel. the Planning Department would like to
propose a one week delay in presentinga Call for Public Hearing in thii regard.
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4.

Miscellaneous.
I.

Ms.Michael and Mr. Karsh presented updates on the Organizationalstructure of the Planning8 Permit
Center and a Platted Lots Summary.

2.

Ms.Michael stated that InterlocalAgreementsare now being developedwith the Cities on Adoption and
Implementationof the Urban Growth Areas.

3.

Staff presented a Personal Senrices Agreement with David NemensAssociates. Inc. for the period of April
12,1996,until terminated and compensationshall not exceed $15,000to provide land use planning use
seMces related to compliance with GMA requirements. Commissioner Wolden made a motion to approve
the Agreement. Commissioner Halt seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. Icontract #029311.

MISCELLANEOUS.

1.

Staff presented a Resolution Calling for Public Hearing in regard to Submittal of a Community DevelopmentBlock
Grant for Business Lending and MicroenterpriseDevelopment for recapitalbationof revolving loan funds and
microenterprisedevelopment. Commissioner Hart made a motion to approve the Resolution, as presented.
CommissionerWolden secondedthe motion and it passed unanimously. [Resolution #16128h

p
,
Ed Hawes, Public Works, opened the bids received for the above mentioned project, as follows:
Callen Construction Company
Custer. WA

$374,304.00
R. Excavating
Everett. WA

$438.060.75
Colacurcio Brothers, Inc.
Blaine, WA

$406225.50
Sloat 8Associates
California
$354.181.80
Thomco Construction
Arlington, WA

$438,828.50
Grade, Inc.
Woodinville. Inc.

$404,424.00
Lee Johnson 8 Sons
Coupeville, WA

$461,753.00
One-way Construction
Sedro Woolley. WA

$478,543.50
Comm-Exco
Mount Vernon, WA

$449.937.75

Record of the Proceedings
Page 3
April 23,1996
10)

Henefield and Associates
Bellingham, WA
$409,381.00

11)

SRV Construction
Oak Harbor, WA
$420,361.95

12)

Trico
Burlington, WA
$411,973.91

~.

e

Mr. Hawes stated that the Engineer's Estimateof the projed is $416,190. Mr. Hawes stated that the bids would be reviewed
and that a recommendationwould be brought before the Board soon.
PUBLIC HEARING -CRITICAL AREAS ORDINANCE
Transcription provided by a Court Reporter will be available in lieu of minutes for this portion of the agenda.
ADJOURNMENT.
Chairman Anderson made a motion to adjourn the proceedings. Commissioner Hart seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously.
&,&P$J
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON

Robert Hart. Commissioner
AlTEST.

Skagit County Board of Commissioners
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Associations
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LINE
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Cris Feringer
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1

PUBLIC HEARING before the SKAGIT COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

2

held in Bearing Room C of the Court House Annex, City

3

of Mount Vernon, County Of Skagit, State of Washington on
the twenty-third day of April, 1996 before Allen R.
a notary Public in and for the State of Washington

5

-erson,

6

residing at Sedro Woolley;

7

WHEREUPON, the following proceedings were had, to wit:

MR. ANDERSON:

8

0

I want to read to you the

9

rules that we are going to follow during this hearing so

10

everyone understands and I'll ask you before to please obey

11

these rules out of courtesy to yourselves and the rest of

l2

those present

13

The purpose of this public hearing is to receive testi-

14 money and written correspondence on the proposed Critical

15 Areas Ordinance.

The Board of County Conrmissioners will not

16

be deliberating nor will it be making a decision on the

17

proposed ordinance during this public hearing.

18

and information obtained tonight and written correspondence

19

20

Comments

received by 4 : 3 0 P.m. April 26, 1996 will be considered by
the Board in evaluating the proposed ordinance.

An afternoon hearing session has been scheduled to
2

Accommodate those with scheduling conflicts such as the
Guemes Island Ferry run.

There will not be an extra evening

4

ferry run for Guemes Island.

5

Public hearing process.

Those of you who wish to

6

provide public comment on the proposed ordinance are asked

I

to sign up on the speakers list so that you may have an

0

opportunity to comment.

9

Your comments should be made within a 3-minute period

10 so that everyone will have a chance to speak.

11

Special

interest groups, associations or those representing others

12 are encouraged to designate a spokesperson for public
13

cosmnents to allow greater participation and cross-

14 representation.

Written comments are encouraged.

The

15 written comment period has been extended to allow all an
16 opportunity to expand on issues of importance.
17

A court reporter is present this evening to record your

18 conments.

Before you testify, clearly state your name,

19 spell your last name for the record and indicate where you

20

reside.

If you have any written comments to add to the

21 hearing record, please give a copy to the staff for

0

recording.
22

(3)

1

We are going to begin and I'm simply going to start

2

right down the list of names, if I have them and I'll go in

3

the order that they are written.

4

Raab

The first is Anthony

.
MR. RAAB:

5

Good afternoon commissioners,

6

thank you for allowing me to comment on the critical areas

7

draft.

8

R-a-a-b. (Spelling) Page 13 of the draft undersection

9

14.06.070, Reasonable Usage Section, I would like to see the

10

opening paragraph be more lenient in not just having

11

acceptance take place when all reasonable and economic

My name is Anthony Raab and my last name is spelled

use of the property is being taken away.

I think thirty-

13

five percent of reasonable use would be a good point to

14

think about allowing acceptance.

15

that position, thirty-five percent.

16

pretty quickly, I will submit written testimony later.

17

way that is written would require one hundred percent of

18

reasonable use before any variance could be utilized.

19

think it is too extreme.

20

the separate track clause, I think that this is a very bad

21

clause.

22

and it will create additional fees.

23

taking and in this situation you are eliminating private

So I would insert, in

I'm going to move
The

I

Then on page 24 under number four

I think that basically it will encumber the owners
It is basically a

1

ownership for each share of wetlands.

2

additional subdivision problems and fees to be generated f o r

3

the survey and engineering process.

4

for public ownership or at least county entry by various

5

officials at any given time and I think it is a violation of

6

private property laws and if not the laws, at least the

7

intent o f private property ownership and I would like to see

8

Skagit County not go with that.

10

all together.

11

categories in the buffers right down, I will do that in

12

written testimony but what I would like to see in this area,

13

language which allows for removal of merchantable timber in

14

ratio to scientific analysis of canopy needs. I think that

15

is an obvious omission that needs to be inserted there.

16

You are causing

You are setting it up

I would kill number four

Page 22, I'm not going to comment on the

On page 49. 2-A,

increasing buffer widths, we have

17

basically the ability, the administrator or official to

18

increase buffer widths at will for any apparent reason and

19

this is supported by the department of ecology and it would

20

depend upon documentation from the department of ecology.

21

I have a series of letters here that explore the Department

22

of Ecology's own steps and I would submit this.
XR.

ANDERSON:

Next up, Ruth Aven.

Mrs. Aven:

1

2

Ruth Aven, Box 68, Bow.

3

the definition section 14.060.40. I would like to see you

4

give definitions for the classes one through five, streams.

5

As opposed to simply referring to them, it would be helpful

6

in reading the documents for those who are more of a lay

7

person.

8

also watershed capabilities, how much water is actually

9

being talked about.

10

0

Good afternoon gentlemen,

I would first of all like address

By defining streams you define their functions and

Secondly under 14.06.180, page 19, I would like to see

11

that section redone.

12

like to see the following substitutions.

13

shall provide a legal description of the proposed project

Under initial project review I would
Project applicant

14 site and the proposal shall be drawn on the national
15 wetlands inventory map.

Please note that when applying for

16 a Forest Practices Application the first request is where
17 are you in relation to a watershed and then they ask you
18

a

for your drivers license and business I D number.

19

Second, county staff shall review proposal and

20

topographical relationship to (a) national wetlands

21

inventory map, (b) USDA Soil Conversation Service, Soil

22 Survey, Skagit County, ( c ) DNR streams, hiking map, ( d )
23

1987 Army Corps of Engineers methodology for identifying and

delineating jurisdictional issues and finally, (e) the final
2

environmental impact statements, which shows where you can

3

expect to find a acquifer as opposed to a pat two hundred

4

feet, which is what is being suggested here.

5

they suspect somebody they are going to come gunning for you

6

at two hundred feet, which is a major situation as far as

7

I'm concerned.

8

door neighbor across the street, his yard, not mine.

9

Apparently if

It would put the county looking at my next

Four, county shall conduct a site visit to determine if

10 a wetland's site assessment is required if development

11

activity falls within one hundred feet of a type four or

12 five stream and type four or five streams by definition are
13 not year around.

Or, two-hundred and fifty feet of a type

14 three or less of the waters of this state.

Thank you so much.

15

MR. ANDERSON:

16

l7

Thank you, Ruth.

Next Up

Ranger Kidwell-Ross.
MR. ROSS:

18
19 ROSS,

My name is Ranger Kidwell

K-I-D-W-E-L-L,hyphen R-0-S-S.

1 live at 278 Barrel

20

Springs Road, Bow.

I encourage you to give a hard look at

21

the areas I find of most concern, which are that there is

22

still a lot of leeway for county officials to make which was
(7)

1

previously called random decisions, decisions on the spot

2

in a variety of areas of the document.

3

is better than it was.

4

much as they should be but certainly I feel it is better

5

than it has been. One of the problems I have seen in follow-

6

ing not only the documents but following some of the permit

7

processes that have happened with the county.

8

there are decisions that are made on the planner level that

9

don't make particularly much sense and I have very little

I think the document

The buffers are still not quite as

It seems that

10 confidence level that we can count of the ability of the
1 1 planning and permit center to, each time, make those

0

12 decisions on their own and would like to see those laid
One of the problems of having them is they

13

out on paper.

14

are vague and they are still in this document and we will

15 have litigation on both sides and I think that is something
16 that we need to put a stop to.
17

I also would like to say that I'm not a member of the

18 Friends of Skagit County.

I do support their position that

19 they will be taking on this issue and I also support their

20 position that the county should get out of the lawsuit
21
22

23

business.
Thank you very much.
MR. ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Next up

0

1

Raymond Knuth.

No?

2

Debbie Benjamin.
X R S . BENJAMIN:

Good afternoon, my name

3

is Debbie Benjamin, B-E-N-J-A-X-I-N (Spelling)

4

Xt. Vernon.

5

Board of Realtors.

6

of over 360 real estate professionals, countless thousands

7

of customers and clients as well as the rights of property

8

owners throughout Skagit county.

I live in

I'm here as president of the Skagit County
Our association represents the interests

A living, healthy and viable community makes good

9

10 economic and environmental sense.

To that end, we have

testified time and again before this body and many others,
12 as we also try to shape growth management policy.
13

Our

testimony has served to seek a balance between reasonable

14 planning goals and the rights and well being of people.
15

One of the often mentioned phrases of affordable

16 housing is at times over-used and sometimes even scoffed

17 at.

Yet it remains true, that the decisions we make today

18 have serious implications not only for our critical areas
19 but also for the housing needs and costs for generations to

20 come. Our testimony today will address this as we speak,
21

not to draw out the critical areas ordinance but to shape

22 it into a document that is right for Skagit County and not

e

1

what others outside of this area say we must do.

2

shape this document into a plan that our citizens want, need

3

and can live with today and for years to come.

4

We need to

Our industry has been unfairly portrayed as a special

5

interest group with self seeking goals when it comes to the

6

growth management act and the critical areas ordinance.

7

Nothing could be further from the truth. We have contributed

8

thousands of dollars to our own Realtors Homeless Endowment

9

lending program and have donated over twenty thousand

10 dollars to the Friendship House. We are involved as leaders

e

11 of the Skagit Affordable Housing Consortium and Skagit

12 Habitat for Humanity.

Those that oppose private property

13 rights and seek here today to restrict all land use planning
14 and future development housing are nowhere to be seen on
15 these issues.

When it comes to looking out for the best

16 interests of our community, including people, I ask you
17 really are the best friends of Skagit County.
18

Thank you.

19

MR. ANDERSON:

20

MRS. GRUBER:

Next up, Elsa Gruber.

Mr. Chairman, County

21 Commissioners, Elsa G-R-U-B-E-R (Spelling) PO Box 21,
22 LaConner.

I'm here representing Skagit Audobon Society.

who

As you know, I served on the Citizen Advisory Committee
2

for the Critical Areas Ordinance.

3

overarching concern is for the good of the community as a

4

whole; for the health and well-being of all the residents

5

of Skagit County and for the economic health of our county

6

now and for the long-term future. The best way to achieve

7

priceless community benefits is to protect the incomparable

8

natural resources, including our critical areas that we

9

have in the county.

Skagit Audubon's

Thsse aren't just words they are

10 qualities that materially affect the quality of life for

all of us here.

Two of the critical areas frequently flood and are
13

geological hazardous arcas we need protection from.

The

14 other three critical ar@as are critical to the ecology
15 and therefore the economic success of our county.
16

Again,

these aren't just words. they are places that matter to all

17 of us.
18

The bottom line is money.

Money that comes out of all

19

our taxpayer pockets.

20

areas so if you are not going to protect these with regula-

21

tions then you will neeU to protect them with incentives

We need to protect these critical

but incentives are very expensive.

With skill and will you

1

can find a healthy combination of both to do the job.

2

today the critical issue is to observe the law and

But

designate and protect our five critical areas with a strong
ordinance.
By now it is well known and well documented that it's
6

far cheaper to prevent than to remediate.

7

Washington State has been for years predicated on that

8

truism.

9

"a stitch in time saves nine."

The strategy of

You can go back through the ages to the old proverb
Trite because it is true.

10 The Puget Sound is predicated on this reality.
11

We must

maintain water quality, not only because it is the right
thing to do for the health of the community but because it

13

is much more costly to clean up water than it is to keep it

14

clean in the first place.

15

mare of ground water contamination.

16

by experience.

17

a

We must avoid the pricey nightWe've learned that here

So what we need to do is avoid the problem because it

18

is so much cheaper to prevent them than to fix them.

19

that's what a strong Critical areas ordinance is all about.

20

We hope that you can forget political rhetoric and ignore

21

the litany of specific complaints that's sure to come and

22

just use your common sense, your courage and your vision of

23

our county's future health.
(12)

And

o 1

As you heard me say before, we have a treasure here in
Skagit County.

Audubon says so?

It has to be protected.
Certainly not.

Because Skagit

Because we don't want to

kill the goose that lays the golden eggs.The quality of our
5

environment is what draws not only new residents but new

6

businesses and corporations here and the tourists that

7

travel through here leaving so much money behind them.

8

Thank you very much.

9

10

MR. ANDERSON:

0

Dave

Mischke.

11

0

Thank you, Elsa.

MR. MISCHKE:

Mr. Chairman, I'm David

12

Mischke, M-I-S-C-H-K-E (Spelling) and I live in Edmonds but

13

I have property just out of Sedro Woolley.

14

thank you for holding the hearings and for considering these

15

conrments.

16

for the private property rights of the land owners in this

17

county. I think that far out weighs even those who live here

18

that have designs on other people's property and as you seek

19

to balance their own use of it, if it ever gets to the

20

point where you have restricted their use in a significant

21

way then it is only appropriate that they be compensated.

22

One of the things that I think we all ought to be consider-

I would like to

I think your number one consideration ought to be

ing are the costs of this management.

What is being

2

required of somebody to use and develop their very own land

3

and the benefits that may come from that.

4

encourage you as you are working these regulations to do so
with cost benefit ratios in mind.

So I would

As I look over the

present critical area it appears that there has been a
tremendous amount of thought given to it.

One of the

8

earlier statements suggested that there not be much room

9

for individual assessment of problems as they arise.

10

I think to the contrary, that we ought to give to the

11

elected and especially the appointed people that are

But

managing our county, we want to give them as much
13

discretion as is appropriate and possible, so that when

14

exceptions arise it should be taken care of and they can be.

15

So I urge you to do that as you continue to work it

16

over and I look forward to a workable ordinance that not

17

only protects the property but especially protects the

18

property rights of the individual.

19

20

21
22

23

Thank you.
XR.

ANDERSON:

Thank you.

This next one

I probably won't get it right, Marianne Ailles.
M R S . AILLES:

My name is Marianne

Manville Ailles and I live at 826 East Orange Avenue in
VOI.
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1

Burlington. My primary concern today has to do with the

2

projects that have been started and have received some
substantial approvals but have not yet been built out. Since

4

the critical area ordinance regulates development activities

5

at each stage of the process, it is possible that an

6

individual could have an approved and recorded long or short

7

plat where roadway and drainage improvements have been

8

bonded. When the individual applies for a fill and grade

9

permit to construct the required improvements, the project

10

could be subject to a critical areas review and require
significant amounts of redesign inorder to meet the requirements of the ordinance.

If those regulations would prove to

13

be more onerous than the bond amount for the required im-

14

provements, the individual could forfeit on the bond and the

15

county would be responsible for not only constructing the

16

court required improvements but also doing all the studies

17

that would be necessary to meet the critical areas

18

ordinance.

19

A l s o , property owners have invested significant sums of

20

money and time in obtaining some type of permit approval and

21

they should have some assurance that they will be able to
complete the project without rules completely changing.
VOL
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1

this ordinance is not amended to allow projects that are

2

currently under review to be exempt from new regulations

3

that could render the project not feasible, the county will

4

be subjected to many unnecessary legal battles.

5

a problem that will go on indefinitely because we don't have

6

that many projects in the pipeline but it is something that

7

must be addressed.

8

9

This is not

There are two places in the ordinance where it is
almost addressed, however I believe that stronger and more

10 specific language is needed to make clear what is intended.
11

I have included with my comments examples of language that

could be included in the exceptions section of the
13 ordinance.

I would also recommend eliminating the non-

14 conforming development section of the ordinance as it raises

15 more questions than it answers.
16

The amended ordinance, the new revision on it has made

17 a lot of improvements over what the first ordinance had.

18 However, it is still somewhat user unfriendly and as a
19

consultant who has actually worked with theee ordinances and

20

actually written critical areas for ordinances in the last

21

ten years I find it somewhat difficult to figure out

22

exactly what it is we are supposed to do to get through the
processes.

As an example, when you talk about the check-

list form and we have to go on a checklist that will
2

identify all known critical areas within two-hundred feet of

3

the project and the references used to identify these areas

4

are included in each section.

5

include all other known areas, not only who is going to make

6

those calls but who is going to understand how to get

7

through this process.

8

The checklist also has to

MR. ANDERSON:

You can submit any other

9

additional comments in written form.

10

Tim Garrison?

11

along.

12

Is he present?

Thank you.

Next up

If not we are going to move

Bob Gent.
MR. GENT:

Good afternoon.

My name is

13

Bob Gent, G-E-N-T (Spelling) from Burlington and I'm the

14

executive vice president of the Skagit County Association of

15

Realtors. I would like to take a moment to thank the

16

planning commission for hundreds of hours spent on this

17

ordinance. I would like to affirm an undeniable truth that

18

the effort put forth in this document has the intent of

19

protecting the critical areas of Skagit County. Any

20

attempt to use the ordinance to further an agenda to Stymie

21

growth by regulation without regard to the true environmental impact should be viewed for what it is; an attack on

(17)

1

property rights.

2

impose the least burdensome regulations, restrictions and

3

expense on the property owners so affected.

4

take in streamlining the process for property owners to

5

comply with this ordinance and minimize the expense to

6

mitigate impacts will have a subsequent favorable impact

7

on future housing costs.

8
9

This ordinance should always seek to

Conversely, unnecessary expenses of regulation has a
direct negative impact on affordable housing forever.

10 will just go through these quickly.
11

Every step you

with the critical use exemptions.

I

Section 1406.070 deals
I propose replacing the

word all with any or some other percentage.

It is un-

13

reasonable to expect that a property owner should only be

14

able to request a variance if all reasonable and economical

15

viability were affected.

Section 1406.080, variances.

16 After public hearings and testimony variances should not be
17 unreasonably denied.

The hearings examiner should be

18

directed to view the individual circumstances with an

19

equal disposition for protecting the critical areas and the

20 rights of affected property owners.
21

Section 1406.150. the checklist and site assessments.

22

We have all heard about nightmarish requirements placed on
individuals by government regulations. Here you as the
(18)

1

county commissioners can have a major impact on affordable

2

housing by insisting on a process that is as inexpensive as

3

possible and easy to comply with for the citizens.

4

lists should be performed that do not add an unnecessary

5

regulatory burden but further the concepts of protecting

6

critical areas. 1406.160, Mitigation standards.

7'

should keep win, win scenarios whereby property owners are

8

allowed reasonable, full use of their property and critical

9

areas are protected.

10

Section 1406.210, buffer widths.

Check-

The county

We still think that

11

somebody's buffer widths are too large.

12

that fact I strongly encourage the commissioners to insist

13

that the staff use good judgment in buffer averaging--

14
15

MR. ANDERSON:

Not withstanding

You're done, Bob.

Next

up, A m Thoreen.

16

MR. THOREEN:

17

T-H-0-R-E-E-N (Spelling) 2755 South Skagit Bighway.

18

be a little more general. Let's pretend for the moment that

19

you are psychiatrists and your patient, Mr. Skagit County

20

comes to you with a dilemma.

21

telling him, man this is a beautiful area, let's keep it

22

just that way and protect it. The right side of his brain

My name is A r n Thoreen,
I'll

The left side of his brain is

1

is saying I have got bills to pay and employees counting on

2

me to keep them employed and children who are going to need

3

houses and jobs in the future.

4

as his psychiatrist is to help Mr. Skagit County deal with

5

these issues in such a way so that he can be at peace with

6

his life and environments and still maintain his economic

7

well-being.

8

I need to develop.

Your job

An editorial in the Seattle Times a few weeks ago

9

addressed this very issue, the regions environment verses

10

economic growth.

11

and appealing environment is important to economic develop-

It is not a new thought that a healthy

ment to more than thirty Pacific Northwest Economists.

The

13

Economists have concluded that the reason this region has

14

continued to prosper despite declining employment in such

15

industries as timber, agriculture, fishing, mining and

16

aerospace is that high technology, manufacturing and a range

17

of business, medical and professional services are filling

18

the gap. It states, "our national landscapes no longer

19

generate new jobs--in todays world these landscapes often

20

may generate new jobs by providing the natural resource

21

amenities; water, air quality, recreational opportunities,

22

scenic beauty and fish and wildlife.

23

Northwest an attractive place to live.

That makes the Pacific

; vot
(20)
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The economists accurately comment, however, that

1‘

2

protecting the environment from degradation and harm to the

3

economy requires money and political will and they currently

4

cite the need to oppose the exploitation of natural

5

resources for low value economic returns rather that pro-

6

tecting and enhancing those resources to achieve a higher,

7

long term economic value.
Now how do these pertain to the critical areas

8

9

ordinance today?

How do we gage the long term affect on

10 whether our actions are appropriate?
11

the salmon.

As

My answer is to use

a fish they give health to the entire

12 watershed. If a small spawning stream loses shade or becomes

13

silted from development or if the wetlands that provide food

14 and over winter become filled or from increased excessive
15

fertilizer use or sewage from septic systems and animal

16 waste decrease the oxygen available, if any of these things
17 happen in the watershed the salmon suffer.

They are to

18

this county what canaries were to minors, an early warning

19

system.

20

21
22

MR. ANDERSON:

Thanks A m , you can

submit the rest in writing, thanks.
MRS. PORTER:

Next up, Jean Porter.

Good afternoon, my name is

Jean Porter, P-0-R-T-E-R (Spelling) and I really appreciate
the opportunity to have a chance to address you folks and to
give my thoughts on the critical areas ordinance.

I have

been active the past two years in private citizen groups
that have been alarmed about the overuse of government infiltrating on their property rights and too big of a governBasically, the things I would like to talk about

ment.

today in the critical areas ordinance is the variance.
9

Now each request for a variance should be considered on

10

it's own merits, because each piece of property is unique.

11

A piece

of property will dictate whether it can be

developed, because it will say, if the soil tests show that
13

it can have a septic system, then it can be developed.If it

14

has water it can be built on. So to go and to make a wide

15

idea and say this is not an area we want to develop and

16

this area we will, every piece of land needs to be looked

17

at individually.

18

looked at individually.

Every application for permit needs to be
Another one I would like to talk

19 about is mitigation standards.

The property owners deserve

20

the opportunity to protect and care for their own land.

21

What government official has a deep devotion, love and

22

concern for the property like the property owner.

23

the price to buy the land in the first place?
(22)

Who paid

Who has paid

0

1

the taxes all of these years, it is the property owner.

So

they need to have some consideration for the money and time,
3

love and devotion they have placed in this county and in

4

this state.

5

I understand that your

Talking about buffer widths.

6

greatest concern is not how wide the buffer zone is but

7

how you are going to protect it.

8

police this buffer zone as well as these environmental

9

critical areas?

10

half and to allow the property owner to fence that land,

How are you going to

M y suggestion is to cut the buffer zone in

that buffer land and that environmentally critical area and
let him be the caretaker of that land.

13

land than the person who owns it?

14

MR. ANDERSON:

15

Who

best knows the

Sorry Jean. Any further

comments you can submit in writing.

16

MRS. PORTER:

17

MR. ANDERSON:

18

MR. FERINGER: Good afternoon.

19
20
21

Thank you.
Cris Feringer.
My name

is Cris Feringer and I live in Bow and have property that I
own there.

As a property owner I'm concerned about regula-

tions just like everyone is, rules and regulations. But as
the old saying goes, we all live down stream and in this

county it is painfully obvious to everyone sometimes how
2

much stream there is that we live near.

I just want to say

3

that the critical areas ordinance needs to be specifically

4

strong enough to protect the beauty that we have in this

5

county that we all too often take for granted.

6

limited resource and we need to see it as that and protect

7

it.

It is a

Thank you.
8
9

KR. ANDERSON:

10

KR. BUSINGER: Thank you.

11

Thank you.

Yost Businger
My name is

Yost Businger, B-U-S-I-N-G-E-R(Spelling) and I live on

12 Guemes Island and I'm a property owner on Guemes Island.
13

I'm very pleased with the ordinance, that part of the

14 ordinance that deals with the aquifer recharge areas,

15 because living on an island surrounded by salt water, the
16 aquifer is a very important and sensitive element that needs

17 protection.

We have applied for sole source aquifer status

18 with the environmental department of ecology but that takes
19

a long time and I'm very pleased to see that this is spelled

20 out here in the ordinance as a critical condition.
21

like to say that I urge you to adopt this element in the

22 document.

0

23

I would

Thank you very much.
MR. ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Dean Bayes

voi.
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1

MR. HAYES:

Good afternoon, my name is

2

Dean Hayes, Sr., H-A-Y-E-S (Spelling) I have presented you

3

with a revised copy of the aquifer recharge areas portion of

4

the critical areas ordinance.

5

The method in which the Department of Ecology uses to

6

measure the low flow levels of the streams was established

7

without any use of science.

8

lations which use the minimum stream flow levels to deter-

9

mine if using water from an aquifer causes a negative effect

10

on the stream, subject to serious doubt.

11

ecology has repeatedly been asked for their methodology and,

Therefore this makes any calcu-

The department of

to date, there has been no response on how the instream flow
13

14

levels were set.
It is your duty as elected officials to represent the

15

best interests of the citizens of Skagit County.

16

original draft on aquifer recharge areas is approved, you

17

will be severely affecting the private property rights of a

18

large number of people. Setting standards and making laws

19

out of emotion or just because we need to pass something is

20

not in the best interests of our citizens today or in the

21

future.

22
23

If the

Thank you.

m. ANDERSON:
(25)

Thank you.

Dean Hayes,

Jr

.

2

MR. KAYES JR.:

My name is Dean Hayes

3

Junior, H-A-Y-E-S (Spelling). Skagit County has been the

4

home of my birth place, my childhood, my schooling and my

5

employment.

6

the Washington State Building and Ground Water Association,

7

a member of the National Ground Water Association, a state

8

licensed well driller and affirmed nationally as a certified

9

well driller and pump installer.

I'm currently on the Board of Directors for

Our job today is to

10 determine whether this ordinance that is presented to you

today serves the publics best interests.

And we must do

this in conjunction with identifying the intended benefit.
13 Will this document provide a benefit to the citizens of
14 Skagit County?

It cannot, because this document is not

15 based on fact.

Our society has had it's greatest advance-

16 ments with studies performed, theories derived and it's
17

contents proven when those items are based on fact.

18

cannot deny ourselves or each other the ability to live,

19

thrive or survive, to better our standard of living, to seek

We

20 our dream of someday owning our home, to raise our family.
21

A dog running around in the back yard.

22

is not serving the publics best interests.

To deny this

It is denying
VoI

(26)
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1

one of the basic things close to us by the constitution of

2

the United States and the State of Washington.

3

ment is not based on fact.

4

of this county.

5

significance criteria will allow regulators to implement

6

anywhere they wish.

7'

the government and I'm here to help you type of ordinance,

8

give sweeping land-use power to regulators who admit they

g

know enough to even write a meaningful ordinance.

10

property owner and a home owner I'm concerned about the

11

cost benefit analysis of this ordinance.

This docu-

It cannot benefit the citizens

The only comforting nature of the high

The document is a trust me, I'm with

in some cases prohibitive.

As

a

The cost is high,

The benefit is low, in some

l2
13

cases negligible.

14

thinking that portrays our county government?

15

then we must consider this document as presented.

16

instead, our document depicts representation of and by the

17'

people as they were elected to do then we must consider an

18

alternative.

19

Does this constitute the kind of
Well, if so,
If,

Thank you.

20

MR. ANDERSON:

21

mention before we go on that there has been some late

22

arrivals and if any of those who have arrived late wish to

23

speak, would you sign in on the sign-in sheet because we
(27)

Thank you.

I might

0

1

2

do not want to deprive anybody of an opportunity.
Next up, Scott Fowler.

3
4

MR. FOWLER:

Good afternoon.

M y name is

Scott Fowler, F-0-W-L-E-R (Spelling) and I reside in

5

Burlington, Washington.

6

Directors for the Washington State Ground Water Association.

7

I'm a member of the National Ground Water Association and I

8

have been certified as a professional in the field of pump

9

installation and well drilling by that association.

I am presently on the Board of

I'm

10 also a state licensed well driller and pump installer.

I'm

the past president of the Wildcat Steelhead Club and
presently serve on the Board of Directors.
13
14

15
16

as it is written will cause a great expense and aggravation
to property owners now and in the future.

The mom and

apple pie nature of this ordinance carries with it many
hidden pitfalls.

For instance, it does not define what

17 sensitive areas are.
18

This ordinance,

It is an aquifer with low flows, high

in iron and may have salt water.

19 health hazard.

It is an area that is a

I think that a sensitive area is an area

20

where wells have been demonstrated t o have a non-treatable

21

health hazard.

Skagit County has a large abundance of

potable water.

I want to see and review the problem areas
(28)

that justify all these proposals and warrant the expense to
property owners and taxpayers in Skagit County, with all the
extras and expensive paper work they will have to go
through.

The growth management act was designed to create

affordable housing for the people of Washington State.

An

ordinance such as this will only add to the skyrocketing
cost of new construction.
fix it.
g

10

If a problem arises, then look at it, solve the

problem using scientific and field-tested proven methods.
Thank you.
X R . ANDERSON:

11

0

If something is not broken, don’t

Thank you.

Harold Ken

12 Fowler.
X R . FOWLER:

13

Thank you.

I’m Harold Ken

14 Fowler, Bow, Washington, F-0-W-L-E-R(Spelling). I‘m

15 President of Dahlman Pump and Well Drilling and Vice
16 President of the Washington State Well Drilling and Ground

17. Water Association.

Past director of the National Ground

18 Water Association.

Present member of the American Ground

19 Water Trust.

I served on several communities in the state,

20

county and nationally, including the Salt Water Intrusion

21

Committee in Skagit County right now.

22

with the legislative action people for the National Ground

I recently talked

23 Water Association and they said they have not ever seen any
(29)

1

record of any state or county ordinance that is as re-

2

stricted as this ordinance is in its present form

3

presented to them and they get hundreds of new ordinances
yearly. One of the questions they ask, is this a aquifer

I believe it

5

recharge plan or is this a water-use plan?

6

is a water-use plan.

7

I believe that an impact analysis on small businesses is

Before this ordinance should

pass,

required under the law.

What is the assessment going to

9

cost the property owner?

What is the time frame for the

10

assessment to be done?

11

value of the property if the bureaucracy under this ruling

12

says you can't use this house or this land?

13

What is going to happen to the

We need a full disclosure of the evidence of the

14 problem being solved.

What is the problem?

This is

15

going to be at the expense of the property owners.

16

do not need laws on what could or may happen when we have

17

no signs proving there is a problem at this time.

18

is like saying you can't drive your car anymore because

19

you might be in a fatal accident.

20

basis of all these seemingly arbitrary numbers used in

21

this document, such as two hundred and fifty-eight houses.

We

That

We need a scientific

The arbitrary figure of a half mile from stream; two

a

1

cubic feet per second, which is not based on scientific

2

fact.

3

people's property values.

4

in its present form.

5

ones the well drilling people have provided to the

6

conmissioners.

7

a

The County Cormnissioners have a duty to protect
This is a very bad ordinance

It needs major changes such as the

We will be much better off to take the time to draft

8

the correct ordinance than be in a position to pass a

9

ordinance because we are in conflict with growth manage-

10

ment. Other counties of this state have not taken near as

11

restrictive measures concerning ground water and the use

12
13

of the ground water.
Thank you.
XR.

14
15

Bob Babbington?

Marlys

Halvorson?

16

17

ANDERSON:

M R S . HALVORSON:

writing

I'll submit mine in

.

18

MR. ANDERSON: Brian McGuiness?

19

MR. WcGUINESS:

I'm Brian WcGuiness

20

and I'm the executive officer of the Skagit Couuty

21

Builder's Association, and I live in Clear Lake.

22

light of the aggressive political move on the part of the

23

Friends of Skagit County to prohibit any further public

In

utility and water district hookups in the unincorporated

2

area, except for dire health reasons, we have grave

3

concern about the proposed aquifer recharge section of

4

the critical areas ordinance before you.

5

wells or springs would be the only other potable water

Since water in

available to those living in the unincorporated area, it
is incumbent upon the county to keep water from becoming
a political football.

Major portions of the proposed

aquifer recharge section, especially the subsection in
10

references to low volume and closed streams, read more

11

like a fish biologists master thesis than an ordinance to

12

protect aquifers. There are no parallels to this thesis

13

in any other critical areas ordinance that I have read

14 around the Puget Sound Area. And as such, this no theory
15

should not be ram-rodded through just to have something

16 on the table.

It is not a understatement that once one

17 reads this eection it becomes apparent that the proposal
18

is, in effect, more a restrictive water withdrawal

19

scenario then an aquifer recharge protection plan.

20

fact, compared to the other ordinances that exist, the

21

proposed section is almost void of any specific reference

22

to protection standards.

In

There is none in there. The

1

aquifer recharge section in our estimation needs major

2

rework to make it a part of an ordinance that both pro-

3

tects aquifer resources and is fair to existing property

4

owners.

5

I am submitting an enclosure (1) which I have given to

6

Jim Cahill with my testimony which details specific

7

recommendations

8

9

It should not hold citizens hostage to theories.

concerning this section.

Our next concern is indicated on page forty-nine of
the draft under standard riparian of buffers.

In the

10 middle of the page, types one and two are depicted with
11

two hundred foot buffers. We challenge this standard as

a buffer.

In the department of ecology’s own scientific

13

literature, the specific Mudd Report of 1975 states that

14

a seventy-five foot natural riparian vegetated buffer

15 promotes optimum wildlife populations for birds, mammals
16 and plant species.

We further recognize--

17

MR. ANDERSON:

18

MR. McGUINESS:

Brian, your time is up.
With regard to this

19

other report it says one hundred feet, so we are for one-

20

hundred feet instead of two hundred.

21

MR. ANDERSON:

KR. MADLUNG:
(33)

Thank you.

Thank you. Next, Dan

I’m Dan Madlung, a Sedro

1

Woolley resident. First of all I would like to commend

2

the Planning Commission and the Board for your patience

3

in dealing with this matter.

4

I know.

5

the two real estate representatives who spoke earlier.

6

My main concern is the buffer requirements.

7

you an example.

8

sensitive area on a piece of property that is fifty by

9

one hundred, that is five thousand square feet.

10
11

It has not been an easy one,

My position really was covered pretty well by

If you take a buffer or a wetland or a

Now we

start drawing buffers around it. A twenty-five foot
buffer zone takes this five thousand square foot area and
increases it to fifteen thousand feet.

13

Let me give

If you draw a

fifty foot around this piece of property you now have

14 thirty thousand square feet dedicated to this wetland.
15

If you put a one hundred foot buffer around that property

16 you now put seventy five thousand feet out of use.

So I

17

think the buffer area is something that we really need to

18

look at.

19

mitigated but then the next key--and I wrote you guys a

20

letter and the Commission a letter last month that spoke

21

to my concerns and that is the application of whatever we

22

pass by the staff, that will be the key.

You have a good section in there that can be

The staff will

have a lot of control and they need to be reasonable and
23
(34)

they need to be fair and be sensitive to--after we buffer
1

2

something, what did we really create.

Are we really after

3

that.

4

overall use of that property?

5

used as a residential or industrial or commercial or

6

whatever the application maybe or are we trying to save

7

a five thousand square foot small wetland area perhaps

8

by drawing a big circle around it and basically taking an

9

entire parcel of land and making it unusable for use.

What has it done to the overall plan and the
Is the property better

10

So, once again, you have a tough job ahead of you,

11

There certainly are a lot of issues that are brought up
before you, you have a hard task before you but I think

13

you will do a good job.

14

you for what you have done.

Again, I would like to commend
Thanks.

15

MR. ANDERSON:

16

MR. YOUNG:

Thank you.

Zell Young.

My name is Zell Young.

I

17

have been hearing arguments on both sides of this subject

18

and I would say on this business wetlands, I happen to

19

live smack dab in the middle of the biggest wetlands in

20

West Mount Vernon and we have three feet of water around

21

the house.

This house was built on dry land and then the

floods and the water started rising.
(35)

That is not so much

1

rainwater as it is seepage that comes on up through the

2

dikes and up into the ground.
I realize the position you people are in, conflicting

3

4

controversies, those that want to protect and those that

5

don't.

6

County and Mt. Vernon that I stand in favor of protecting

7

the existing system rather than to have it more thoroughly

8

developed.

g

I would say that I probably come down on the side of the

lo

residents of Skagit County.

I would say as a life long resident of Skagit

I think that probably covers my position, but

MR. ANDERSON:

11

a

12

Abel?

Lloyd Loop?
MR. LOOP:

13
14

Gentlemen, one of the main

reasons I came here today--

15
16

Thank you, sir. Deborah

MR. ANDERSON:

Would you spell your

last name, please?

17

MR. LOOP:

My last name is L-0-0-P.

I

18

I live in Bow, Washington.

19

one month and four days less than seventy three years

20

within a mile of the house I was born in.

21

Mr. Young is the only one here who is older and knows

22

more about what things were like then and what they are

23

like now.

In fact, I have lived there

So probably

I want to commend you commissioners for not

(36)

1

going along with that GMA and rushing into something that

2

is going to be for twenty years and this is longer than

3

some of us are going to live and it is a long, long time
without doing things right.

I want to speak on the thing

5

that is so important to me.

I love Skagit County and I

6

love the State of Washington and I love the United States.

7

I believe in the constitution that our forefathers fought

0

a revolution for to give us rights.

9

wars the veterans have fought in to keep these rights.

We have had two world
We

10 have had a civil war to keep these rights for the Blacks

and now we are threatened within with all these Societies
that call themselves Friends of Skagit County, Audobon
13

Societies, Sierra Club.

They spend all their money for

14

wages for those people causing trouble and buying high-rise

15 buildings and they don't mean nothing to what they are

I just wonder how long it

16

causing everybody trouble for.

17

is going to be before we are going to have another revolu-

18

tion or civil war in this country.

19 writing and talking now.

It is in the stage of

You have got militia started, the

20

one in Montana, they are breaking the constitution and they

21

are just as crazy as these people from these Societies who
say they are for doing good and I don't believe in that.
(37)

1

But there is going to be a war here, I said this to

2

several people about five years ago, between the haves and

3

the have-nots. Those of us who have worked all our lives and

4

have something, we want to give some to our families and we

5

want to do something and the have-nots want to tell you what

6

to do.

Well, this is coming to a screeching halt.

You

just remember what I have said today, all of you people
8

9

because you will live longer than I will, most of you and it
is going to happen. Every politician--

MR. ANDERSON:

10

11

a

I'm sorry, Lloyd I'll

have to cut you off.

12

MR. LOOP:

You swore to uphold the

l3

constitution and you are not doing it if you go along with

14

this.
MR. ANDERSON:

15
16
17

Thank you. Next up,

Barbara Craner.
MRS. CRANER:

Barbara Craner, Conway,

18 Washington and I'm just speaking in support of a strong
19' critical areas ordinance and in support of specific language
20

21
22
23

that would protect critical areas.

MR. ANDERSON:
MR. KNUTH:

Thank you very much.
Robert Knuth?

My name is Robert Knuth,

1061 Elm Lane, Sedro Woolley, lifetime resident on the

0

1

property that I was raised on.

2

near River Front Park in Sedro Woolley.

3

development.

4

a decade that I have complained about and that is on the

5

record and today we are trrying to fix what is already

6

broken.

7

in down there, not just by developers but also by property

8

owners.

9

We have had over-

We have had lack of code enforcement for over

We have had the one-hundred year flood ways filled

Ten feet at a time, adding a garage out there.

Now what is done is done.

10 more rules and regulations.

0

I live near the Skagit River

We can all sit here and jot down
We need to break it down to

11

some common sense. We need to do it in an airplane after our

12

next big flood and map that dog-gone flood way and find out

13

where that river is going.

14

at the picture.

15

water.

16

ment the last decade and even the course of the river has

17

been changed as evidenced by my fence, which all my life had

18

pointed to the south when the flood is up--pardon me, to the

19

north and now it points to the south.

20

point of land that belongs to my neighbor, Tom Vlahovich, a

21

hundred yards towards my woodshed and with velocity,

We don't need engineers to look

I have a picture of my home going under

I have watched the encroachment through the develop-

tremendous velocity.

It has moved from a

We need to get up in an airplane and
(39)

take a picture, who is wet.

Should we put septic systems

2

here?

Should we put water systems here?

3

should we do that?

4

mapped out.

5

about and all I'm asking you to do is an airial photography

6

at the next major flood.
reality.

Should we do this,

That is secondary to get this thing

Lets find out what in the hell we are talking

Then everybody can look at the

This would be objective as opposed to subjective.

Thank you.

MR. HART:

I might just mention that

10

cor. of engineers at the last flood did take photos of the

11

whole valley and they are supposed to be preparing those

12

for us.

m. Ic"JTH: Yeah, it is critical, we

13

14 need to do that.

We have put so many impingements with so

15 much development that it is unreal.
IdR. ANDERSON:

16

17

who have signed in to speak.

That completes the people

Is there anyone else in the

18 audience who did not sign in who wishes to come forward and
19

speak?

20

close the meeting until seven o'clock this evening.

21
22

0

23

Well that completes our testimony.

We are going to

(AFTERNOON SESSION
RECESSED ON 4/23/96)
IdR. ANDERSON: Can I have your attention.

1

We are here for a public hearing tonight on the critical

2

areas ordinance.

3

receive testimony and written correspondence on the proposed

4

critical areas ordinance.

5

will not be deliberating nor will we be making a decision on

6

the proposed ordinance during this public hearing.

7

and information obtained tonight and written correspondence

8

received by 4 :3 0 ,

9

Board in evaluating the proposed ordinance.

10

afternoon session we had scheduled to accommodate those

11

with scheduling conflicts like Guemes Island because of the

The purpose of this public hearing is to

The Board of County Commissioners

Comments

April 26th, 1996 will be considered by the
There was an

ferry runs since we didn't have an extra evening ferry run
13

for the Island.

14

comment on the proposed ordinance are asked to sign up on

15

the speakers list so you may have an opportunity to comment.

16

Your comments should be made within a three minute period

17

so that everyone will have a chance to speak.

18

interest groups, associations or those representing others

19

are encouraged to designate a spokesperson for public

20

comments to allow greater participation and cross represent-

21

ation.

22

comment period has been extended to allow all an opportunity

23

to expand on the issues of importance.

Those of you who wish to provide public

Written comments are encouraged.

Special

The written

A court reporter

is

